Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report

Nodwin Gaming Private Limited

For the year ended 31 March 2020



Contents

Independent Auditor's report

Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit and Loss

Statement of Cash Flow

Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Pages

011007
8

9

10

11

12 to 36



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & CoLLP
11th floor, Tower |1,

One International Cenler,
5B Marg, Prabhadevi (W)
Mumbai — 400 013

India

T+91 22 6626 2609
F +91 22 6626 261

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of Nodwin Gaming Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nodwin Gaming Private Limited (‘the Company"),
whish comprise the Balance Shest as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according o the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including
Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2020, and its profit {including other comprehansive income), its cash flows and the
changas in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI') together with the
ethical requirements that ara relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directars is responsible for the other information. The other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on tha financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Nodwlin Gaming Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respensibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Internal financials controls with
reference to the financlal statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under
saction 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accouniing records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and esfimaies that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statemants that give a true and fair view and are fraa from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

The Company's Board of Directors is also rasponsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on control criteria in accordance with the Intemal Control Framework defined in Appendix | to
Standard on Auditing {SA) 315, “ldentifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatements Through
Understanding the Entity and its Environment” (the framework).These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and afficlent conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that giva a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and
emor and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

In preparing the financial statements, management is respongible for assessing the Company's ability to
continué as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Internal financial controls with
Reference to Financlal statements

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemeants as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Nodwin Gaming Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

10. Under section 143(3){i} of the Act, we are also responsible to express an opinion on the Campany’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements (IFCoFR) based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAF)
prescribed under Seclion 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable 1o an audit of internal financial controls
with reference o financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting {'the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we camply with athical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

11. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting involvas performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
abtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the nsk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

12. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

13. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exarcise professnonal judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
of error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaterent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from emor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgary, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control;

Evalvate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we
¢onclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the GCompany io cease 1o continue as a going congern,

Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undaerlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation;

14. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we
identify during our augit,

o S
MUNMBA .
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Nodwin Gaming Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasanable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assats of the company: {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary 10 permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of interna! Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statermments, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degres of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 were audited by the pradecessor
auditor, APKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, who have expressed an unmodified opinion an those
financial statements vide their audit report dated 25 September 2019.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid and
provided remuneration to its director during the year in accardance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies {Auditor's Reporf) Order, 2015 {'the Order) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure | a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to cur comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3} of the Act, based on our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act; :
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Walker Chandiok &CoLLP

Nodwin Gaming Private Limlited
independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemeants

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) In owr opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based
on the framework.

g) with respect to the ather matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {(as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial posilion as at
31 March 2020,

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2020;

. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Invesior Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year endad 31 March 2020; and

iv. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in spacified bank notes were
applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant to
these financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No:001076N/N500013

Sanjay Banthia

Partner

Membership No:061068
UDIN:20061068AAAAAS2270

Place: Mumbasi
Date: 18 November 2020
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Nodwin Gaming Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Nodwin Gaming Private
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the
books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and bsliaf, we report that:

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property and equipment.

{b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property and equipment under which
properly and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in cur
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this program, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The Company does nothold any immovable property (in the nature of ‘praperty, plant and equipment’).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

ii) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3ii) of the Order are
not applicable

iiiy The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships {LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3{iii}a), 3(iii}b) and 3{iii}c) of tha Order are not applicabte.

iv) In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 in respect of investments
and has not entered in to any transaction covered under Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans,
guaranteas and security. Furthar, in our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction
covered under Section 185 of the Act.

v} In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3{v) of the Order are not applicable.

i) The Central Government has not spacified maintenance of cost records under sub-section{1) of Section
1438 of the Act, in respect of Company's products. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order
are not applicable.

vii} (@) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-lax, goods and service tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, to
the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof wers
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payabls.

{b) There are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and
value added tax that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

vii)  The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a financial institution or a bank or government and
no dues payable to debenture-holders during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of
the Order are not applicable.

w5l
=" e
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Nodwin Gaming Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | {Contd)

ix)

)

xi)

xif)

Xiii)

Xiv)

XV}

xvi}

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {(including debt
instruments) and did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable.

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticad or reported
during the period coverad by our audit.

Managerial remuneration has been paid /provided by the company in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V 1o the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order
are not applicable.

In our cpinion, all fransactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and the requisite datails have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements,
as raquired by the applicabla Ind AS. Further, in our opinion, the Company is not required to constitute
audit commiitee under Section 177 of the Act.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures.

In our opinion, the Company has not enfered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or
personsg connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No:001076N/N500013

Sanjay Banthia
Partner
Membership No.061068

UDIN:20061068AAAAAS2270

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 November 2020
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Nodwin Gaming Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
{Amounts are slaled in ¥ milllons, unless otherwise stated)

FParticulars Note No. As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Assets
Non-current asselts
(2) Property and equipment 2 3.22 2.82
(b) Right-of-use assets 3 4.82 -
{c} Intangible assets 4 176 .68 241.43
{d) Financial assets
Investments 5 575 5.75
() Deferred tax asset {net) 6 t.67 1.58
i} Income tax asset (nel) 7 5.32 5.28
Total non-current assets 197.46 256.85
Cuwirent assets
{(a) Financial assets
Trade receivables 8 475.94 213,20
Cash and cash equivalenls 9 22 46 56,26
Loans 10 13.27 2.00
QOther financial assets 11 19.01 12,85
{b} Other current assets 12 67.52 33.20
Teotal current assets 598.20 317.51
Total assets 795.66 574,36
Equity and liabilities
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 13 013 0.13
() Other equily 14 396,55 383.36
Total equity 396,68 383.49
Mon-current liabilities
va} Financiai liabilities
Lease |iability 3 143 -
{b} Provisiong 156 3.81 2.99
Tetal nen-current liahilities 5.24 2,59
Current liabifities
{a) Financial liabiliies
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues to micre and small enterprises 6 - -
Total outstanding dues to creditars other than micro and small enterprises 16 370.57 176.62
Lease liability 3 3.46 -
Other financial liabilities 17 7.03 1.61
ib) Olher current liabilities 18 10.27 9.70
{} Provisions 19 052 0.35
i) Gurrenl tax liabililes (nel) 20 1.8¢ =
Tetal current liabilities 393.74 188.28
Total equity and hiabilities 795.66 574.36

The accompanying noles form an integral part ol thase financial statements.
A3 per our reporl of even date altached.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Sanjay Banthia

Fartner
Membership No.; 061068

Flace; Mumbai
Date: 18 November 2020
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

DIN: 20870302

Place: Gurugram
Date: 18 November 2020

Manish AGarwal
Direct
DIN: 03445163

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 November 2020



Nodwin Gaming Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Ameunis are stated In ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 231 March 2019
Income
{a) Revenue from operations 21 746.61 49517
{b} Other incoms 22 7.41 5.08
Tolal Ingeme 75402 501.25
Expenses
{a) Employee benefits expense 23 49,42 32.90
{b} Finance costs 24 0.0 -
{c) Depreciation and amortization expense 25 66.68 25.21
{d} Other expenses 28 819.71 432.17
Total expenses 735.91 490.28
Profit before tax 18.11 10.97
Tax expenses (net} 27
{a) Current tax 4.77 3.70
{b) Deferred tax {0.04) {0.63)
Profit for the year 13.38 7.90
Cther comprebensive ingome
itemms that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation {0.26) {1.84)
{b) Income tax relating to above itern 0.07 0.53
Other comprehensive loss for the year {net of tax}) {0.19) {1.31)
Total comprehensive income for the year 13.19 6.59
Earnings per equity share of face value of T 10 each
Basic and diluted (in 2} 28 907.47 588.94

I he accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 001078N/N500013

Sanjay Banthia

Fartner
Membership No.. 061068

Dirgefor

Place: Mumbai 7 o R
Date: 18 November 2020 st
[0 amon

Page 9

AR
e

Akshat-Rathee

f_lr ¢ & it

"

DIN: 00870302

Place: Gurugram
\ Date: 18 November 2020

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Manish Agdrwal

Place: Mumbat
Date: 18 November 2020



Nodwin Gaming Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amounts are stated in 2 millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Depregiation and amertisation expense

Bad debits written off

Provision for gratuity

Allowance for expected credit loss

interest income

Interest on lease liability
QOperating profit before working capital changes
Adjustrnents for working capital :

Trade and other receivables

Trade, other payables and provisions
Cash flow {used in) operations

Income taxes paid {including tax deducted at source)
Met cash flow {used in) operating activities (A}
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Interest received
Net cash flow {used in) investing activities (B)
Cash flow fram financing activities

Paymenl of lease liability {including interest on lease liability)
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities {C}
Net (Decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents {(A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents {opening balance)}
Cash and cash equivalents {closing balance) (refer note 9}

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
As per our report of even dale attached.

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firn1 Registration Ne. 001076N/N5S00013

i s S
Sanjay Banthia

[Fartner
Membership No.: 061068

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 November 2020

¥ ¥
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18.11 10.97
66.68 25.21
4.92 -
1,43 0.39
0.43 -
(1.10) {1.67)
0.10 -
90.27 34.90
(319.84) (190.26)
199.96 144 83
{29.61) {10.53)
(2.91) (12.22)
(32.52) (22.75)
(.77) (2.93)
1.19 1,67
{0.67) {1.26)
(0.61) .
(0.61) -
(33.80) {24.01)
56.26 80.27
22.46 56.26

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

- \ &
('/ A &g\re .»'/
( e -~ o
Akshat Rathee

Diregtor
DIN: 00870302

Place: Gurugram
Date: 18 November 2020

Mani.l rwal

Director
DIM: 03845163

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 November 2020



Nodwin Gaming Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
fAmounts are stated in T millions unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital (Refer note 13)

Parti As at As at
tcHisE 31 March 2019 31 March 2020
Balance as at beginning of the year 0.13 013

Changes in equity share capital = =
Balance at the end of the year 0.13 0.13
B. Other equity

Particulars Securities premium Retained earnings Dther equity
Balance as at 31 March 2018 365.29 21.48 376,77
Frofit for the year - 7.90 7.90
Olher comprehensive income - (1.31) {1.31
Balance as at 31 March 2049 355.29 28.07 383.36
Prolit for the year - 13.38 13.38
Other comprehensive income - (0.19) {0.19
Balance as at 31 March 2020 355.29 41.26 396.55
I he accompanying notes form an integral part of thess financial staterments.

Ag per our report of even date attached.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accounlants

Firm Regietration No. 001076NfN500013 (/

5 a-\,.‘a,a..t E n-n*b:m )

Sanjay Banthia Akshat R thee Manish Agapial
Fartner Direclof Director

Membership No.. 061068 DINY 00870302 DIN: 03445163

Place; Munibai / f e AN Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 November 2020 {se S\ Date: 18 November 2020 Date; 18 November 202
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wodwin Saming Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery information
{Amounts are stated in ¥ millions unless otherwise stated)

{1

0

{iii}

{iv)

{v)

1 Significant accountlng policies and other explanatory information

Corporate information
Nodwin Gaming Private Limited (the "Company') incorporated in India on 13 January 2014. The Company is subsidiary of Nazara Technologies Limited, an

unlisted public company, there by becoming a deemed public company. The Company is primarily engaged in providing e-sports gaming consultancy related to
organizing gaming events, sponsorship and related consultancy services. The registered office of the company is sifuated at 1st Plot No. 118, Sector-31,
Gurugram 122001,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with the Indian Accournting Standards {Ind AS) as nofifird under Section 133 ol
the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA’). The financial
staternents are authorized for issue by lhe Company's Board of Directors on 30 Septermnber 2020.

The financial statemants have been prepared on a historlcal cost basis, except certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporling period, Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration glven in exchange for goods and services. Falr value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwaen markat participarts at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is direclly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue.

The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented, except for new accounting standards adopted by the Company,

All amounts included in the financial statements are reported in Indian rupees {in T million} except share and per share data, unless otherwise staled.

The financial statements correspond to the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, "Presentation of Financial Statements™. Far clarity, various items are
agyregated in the slalement of profit and luss and balance sheel. These items are disaggregated separalely in the notes to the financial statements, wheare
applicable

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presenis assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current classification. An assetis treated as current when it is:

+ Expecied to be realized or intended to be scld or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held prirnarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to ba realized in normal apearaling cycle or within twehe months after the reporting period or

» Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reparting pericd
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A hability is currenl when:

+ L is expecied 1o be settled in normal oparating cycle or due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

+ ILis held pamarily lor Lhe purpose of rading

+ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporling period

Al other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabililies.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has dentifiec
penod of welve months as its operaling cycle,

Foreign currency transactions and translations

i. Functional currency
The hnancial stalements are presented in Indian Rupees {(3I), which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Company operates.

ii. Transactions and franslations

Transachions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by tha Company at its functional eurrency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies fo
recognilion. Monetlary assels and liabiiilies denominaied in forgign currencies are lranslaled at the funclional currency spot rates of exchange at the repording
date. Exchange differences arising on setllernent or transialion of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss with the sxception of the following:

Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity's net invesiment in a foreign operation are recognized in profit or loss in the
standalone financtal statements of the reporting entity.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical nost in @ foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initia
rangaclions, Non-moenetary ilems measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translaled using lhe exchange rates al the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-ronetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the ilem (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair vaiue gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized ir
QC| or profit or loss, respectively).

Use of estimates and judgaements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting pollcies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the
fhnancial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of curreni
events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimaltes. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision tc
accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

The argas involving significant judgement and estimates are as follows:

Property and equipment and intanglble assets

The charge in respect of periadic depreciation/ amortization is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual
value al the end of its life, Management at the time the asset is acquired! capitalized pericdically, including at each financial year end, determings the useful
lives, method of depreciationf amortisation, pattern of usage or consumption and residual values of Company's asscis. The lives arc based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may affect their Iife, such as changes in technology. change in depreciation
method or pattern of use of inlangible assets.

The Company reveiws the depreciation/famortisation method and pattern of usage or consumption annually and, if expectgtios differs from previous estimates,
the change is accounted fur as chanye in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.
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v}

Use of estimates and judgements (continued}

Estimated value and useful life of ROU asset

Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has the right to use an underlying asset including optional periods, when an
entity is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend {or not to terminate) a lease. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances thal
create an economic incantive for the lessee to exercise the option when determining the laase term. The aption to extend the lease term is included in the lease
term, if it is reasonably certain lhal the lessee would exercise the option, The Company reassesses the option when significant events or changes In
circumslances oceur that are within the control of the lessee. The lease term in future perieds is reassessed fo ensure that the lease term reflects the current
economic circumstances. The Company has applied an incremental borrowing rate for the purpose of compuling lease liabilities based on the rate prevailing in
India

Impairment of non-financlal assets including ROU

Nen-financial assets are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances (ingluding modification of the lease term) indicate that the
carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine

the extent of lhe impairment loss (if any).

Considering the nature of the business and services provided to the customers, the entire business constitutes singe cash generating unit as per Ind AS 36-
‘mpairment of Assets' as the management regularly monitors and reviews the operating result of the whole Company as one segment. Therefare, the
Company assess the recoverability of assets by considering the cash flow projection at the Company level since the entire business s integrated and linked to

each other,

Fair value of financial instrumeants

Management uses valuation technigues in measuring the fair value of financial insiruments where active markel quotes are not avallable. In applying the
valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with
observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best estimate
about the assurnplions that markel parlicipants would make, These estimales may vary rom the aclual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length
transachon al the reporling date.

Cefined khenefit plan
The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined bensfit obligations are based on acluarial valuation using the projected unit credil

melhod, An acluarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developmenls in the future. These inciude the determination of
the discount-rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Dug to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nalure, a defined benefil
obligation is highly sensilive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Revenue recognition

The Gempany exarcise its judgement in delermining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company
considers indicalors such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of
enforceable right to payment for performance lo date and alternate use of such product or service, dynamic verses stalic media content, trarsfer of significant
risk and rewards to lhe customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, gl¢.

The Company provides brand and media sponsorship services, including exclusive or non-exclusive lille spensorships, media rights, additional infrastructural
placemenl, soctal media rights {including rights (o create and post social content and clips). Revenue from single experiences is recognized when the
experience occurs. Revenue from multi-week packages are recorded over the peried of an evenl, usually few weeks lo few months, excepl for ransaction
wherein the aceeptance is confirmed upon delivering entire event (including in case verbal or oral arrangementfs}. For the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019, 42 percent and 53 percent were recognized at a single point in time and 58 percent and 47 percent of revenues were recognised over lime, respectively.

The Company provides services 1o a few overseas custermners based on the verbal or oral arrangement, which is in ine with customary business practices with
such customers. In such arrangements, the multi-wask arrangement is also recognised al a poinl in time, i.e. upon occurrence of the experiences and an
assessment of collectability in respect of servicas performed, usually based on the past collection trend with the customer/ custamer group.

The Company exsrcises judgement in determining whether the service providers is acling in the capaclity of prinipal or agent for the services that are rendered
threugh them. The Company ascerlains the same based on the criterias such as who is the primary obliger under the contracl, who has discretion in pricing,
who bears the credit risk, etc. The Company has concluded Whal it is the principal in all of ils revenue arrangement, sinca it is the primary obligator in all revenue
arrangements, has pricing latitude and is also exposed to credit risks,

The Company has determined that the transaction with Ihe subsidiary is at arm's length based on the transfer pricing study conducted by an independent
axternal oxpert

During the year, the Company has rendered services related o e-sports production ameunting to 2 250 to one customer. In addition, the Company availed
adverlisement services (dissimilar services) amounting to T 253.00 from the same party, Considering the nalure of the transaction and gross settlement in
respect of the aforesald transaction/s, revenue and advertiserment costs have bsen recognised on gross basis,

The Company has determined that the place of supply for services to the overseas customers is outside India, i.e. location of the customerfs. Sirmilarly place of
supply for in-porson esports experience wherein the lecation is outside India is location of Ihe event. In addition, receipt of money for the aforesaid services
provided is in equivalent foreign currency. Accordingly, the Company is rict liable to pay GST on aforesaid services provided to the customer/s.
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v

{vi)

{wii)

Use of estimates and judgements {continued)

Uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic (Covid-13)

The Covid-19 has brought unprecedented uncertainty across the globe {including all places of business our Company and clients oparates in). Whila the
Company has quickly adopted to altemate business continuily scenarie, the uncertainly stil prevails regarding the timelines of resuming lo normal work
conditions. In devaloping the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global sconomic conditions because of this panderic, the
Gompany. as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and relatec
information, economic forecasls and consensus estimates from market sources on the expectad future performance of the Company,

hanagement has evaluated short-term as well as long-term impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the industry and believes that, Company being in business ol
esports brand and media consutting, the pandemic will not have a significant negative effecl on the Company's financial posilion and results of its operations,

From business perspective, the Company 1s buoyed with the resilience of esports market in these challenging times and are confident of our ability to maintair
ol cornmergtal direction and to olfer @ solution to the esporls industry that is grappling wilth the mass-cancellation of live-in person events. Although thers is &
surge in demand for online espods tournaments hosting, primarily on account of global travel restrictions and limitalions on public gatherings making large
scale in-person esports events impossible and the parnership pipsline of the Company remains strong with discussion confinuing with many well-kKnowr
brands and organizations including expansion of existing partnerships, the Company has considered all prudent cost reduction action to minimize the impact of
the pandemic.

The Company has also performed sensitivity analysis on the assumplions used and based on current sstimates expects the carrying amount of these assets
will be recevered, net of provisions established. In addilion, the management has reasonable expectation that the Company has adeguate resources (c
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of not less than twelve months from the date of approval of these financia
statements. The company therefore continuss to adopt the going concern hasis in preparing its financial statements.

Though itis too early to estimate the same in view of the valatility in the global economic conditions pursuant to this pandemic; the Company as at the date ol
the approval of these financials statermenl, has used various available sources of information to analyse the carrying amount of its financial assets and
exposures. The impact of Covid-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from the eslimate as on the date of the approval of the financial
statements. The Company will continue to clossly monitor any materiat changes to future ecanomic conditions.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized when the Company transfers promised goods or sorvices to cuslomers in an amount that reflecls Ihe consideration ta which the

Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. In lhis regard, revenue is recognized when: (i) the parties to the contract have
approvad the conlract (in writing, orally, or in accordance with olher custemary business praclices) and are committed to perform their respective obligations:
(i) the: entity can identify each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be fransferred; {iil) the enlily can identify the payment terms for the gocds or
services o be lransferred, (iv} the contract has commercial substance (that is, the risk, timing, or amount of ihe entity's future cash flows fs expected to change
as a result of the contracthand (v} it is probable thal the entity will collect substantially all of the consideration to which il will be entilled in exchange for the
goods or services [hat will be transferred to the customer,

The Company generates brand and media sponsorship revenues primarily from sale of various forms of sponsorship and promotional campaign on customers'
viline platferms or social media and from sponsorship at its in-person esports experiences, Brand and media sponsorship revenues include exclusive or non-
exclusive litle sponsorships, media nghts, additional infrastructural placement, social media rights {including rights to creale and post social content and clips).
Brand and media arangements typically include contract terms for a time periods ranging from weeks to few monihs. All revenues are stated net of the amounl
of goeds and service tax (G3T)

Income receivable represents revenues recognised for services rendared in accordance with contractual lerms, which have not besn billed at the balancs
shoet date. Revenue billed or celiected in advance is recorded as deferred revenue unlil the event ocours or until applicable parformance obligations are
satisfied as described above.

Accounts recelvable are recerded at the eriginal invoice amount, less an estimale made for daubtiul accounts, if any. The Company provides an allowance for
doubtful accounts for potential credit lnsses based on its evaluation of the collectability and the customers' creditworthiness. Accounts receivable are written off
when they are delenmined lo be uncolleclible. As of 31 March 2020, expected credit loss, including bad debls, of € 5.35 was recorded in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial instrument

A financial instrurnent is any contract thai gives rise 10 a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,
a) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All inancial assets are recognized initially &t fair value plus, in the case of financial assets nol recorded at fair valua through profit and loss, transaction costs
that are atlributable to the acquisition of the financial asset,

Subsequent measuremeont

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three broad categories:

- Debtinslruments assets at amortized cosl

+ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FWVOLC )

- Debtinstruments at fair value ihrough profit and loss {(FVYTPL)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A Debt instrument is measured at amortized cost (net of any write down for impairment) the assel is held to collect the contractual cash flows {rather than lo
sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity 1o realize its fair value changes) and The contractual lerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount cutstanding,

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the sffective interest rate (EJR} method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisilion and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other incorme n the
pratit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are tecognized slatement of profit and Joss, This category generally applies (o trade and other receivables
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{vii) Financial instrement {continued)
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH)
A financial asset thal meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through OC! unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit and
loss under fair value option.
» The financial asset is held both Lo collect contractusl cash flows and to sell,
* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal ameount outstanding.

Instruments included within the FYTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in
OCL. However, the Company recognizes interast Income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Profit and Loss, On
derecogritlon of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in GGl is reclassified from the equity to Profit and Lass. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instruments at fair value through profit and foss (FYTPL)
FWTPL s a residual calegory for company's investmant instruments, Any instruments which doss not meet the criteria for categorization as al amorlized cost or

as FVOCI, is classified as al FYTPL. ) . .
All investments (except investment in subsidiary) included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with ail changes recognized in Statement of

Profit and Loss
b1 addition, the company may elect to designate an instrument, which otherwise meets amartized cost ar FYOGH crileria, as at FVTPL. However, such election

is allowed onlv if doina 50 reduces or eliminates a measurement of recoanition inconsistency (referrad to as 'accounting mismatch').
Derecognition

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party undsr a pass-through' arrangement; It evaluates if and to what extant it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

A financial assel (or, where applicable, 2 part of a financial asset or pari of @ Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- Based on above evaluation, either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Coempany has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assel.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assel, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues

to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, In thal case, the Company also recognizes an assaciated liability, The

transferred assel and the associaled liabilily are measured on a bases that reflect the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Conlinuing Involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay,

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit Joss {ECLY model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial
asgsets which are not fair value through profit & loss and equity instruments recognized in OC)

The Company lollows 'simplified approach’ for recognilion of impaiment loss allowance on trade receivables. It recognizes impairment loss allwance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Fer recognition of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk exposure, the Company determines thal whether there has been a significant increase in
Ihe credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairmenl loss. However, if credit risk
has Increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected Iife of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a
portion of the lifetlime EGL which resulls from default evenls thal are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference belween all contractual cash flows thal are due to the Company in agcordance with the conract and all tha cash flows that the entity
expecls tu receive (.e,, all cash shorifalls), discounled al the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an antity is required to consider:

+ Al contractual terms of the financial instrument { including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expecled life of the financial

instrument, However, in rare cases when the expected life uf the financial instrument cannol be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use

lhe remaining conlractual term of the financial instrument.
- Cash flows from the sala of collateral held or other credit snhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
ECL impairment loss allowance tor reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount
is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the Staterment of profit and Isss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

* Financial agsets measured as al amortized cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables:
ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral parl of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheel. The allowance reduces the net camying
amount, Until the assel meels write-off criteria, the Company does nol reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.
Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assels are already refiected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value.
Ralher, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the QCI,

b} Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial fiabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profil and loss or at amortized cost, as appropriate. All financial
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly atiributakle transaction costs. The Company's financial
liabilities include trade payables, lease obligalions, and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Wabilities at amortized cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method, Gains
angd Io_sses are recognized in profit and loss when the liabilities ars derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.,

Amortized cost is caloutaled by taking into account any discount ar premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortizalion is included as finance costs in the Statement of Prafit and Loss.
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{vii}

{viil}

(ix})

Financial instrument {continued}

Derecognition

A financial ligbility is derecognized when the obligation under ths liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantlally modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original fiability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss

c} Offsetting of financial instruments
Finanvial assets and financial liabilities are offsel and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and ssitle the liabifities simultanecusly.

d} Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial
assets which are equity instruments and financial liabillties. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a changs
in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management
determines change in the business model because of external or internal changes which are significant {o the Company's operations. Such changss are
evident {o external partiss. A change in the business model cccurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclasslficalion prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately nexl reporting pericd following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Income tax

Income (g@x expense comprises of current tax expense and deferred tax expense/beneflit. Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, excepl
when they relate to items thal are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equlty, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in olher comprehensive income or directly in equity.

iY Current tax

Current income tax is {he amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accardance with the provisions of the applicable income
tax law. The current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been snacted or substanfively enacted, at the reporting data, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respecl of previous years.

i) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the Balance sheet approach on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
anwounts,

Deferred tax assats are recognised [0 the extent thal it is probable ihat laxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
e carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except when the deferred tax asset relaling o the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaclion Lhal is nol a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carying amount of deferrad fax assels is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 1t is no longer probable that sufiicient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Un-recognised deferred lax assels are re-assessed at each reparting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has hecome probable that future taxable profils will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovared.

The Company recognises deferred tax lability for all taxable temperary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associales, except to the
extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied.

- When the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; and

- il i probable that the temporary differance wili not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax acsets and liabilities are offset when lhere is a legally enforceables right to offset current lax assets and liabiliies, Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset whers the entlty has a iegally enforceable rnght to offset and intends eilher to settle on a et bagis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultanecusly,

Praperty and equipment

Allitems of property and aquipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost of property and equipment comprises purchase price, non-refundable taxes, levies, and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Afler initial recognition, properly and squipment are measured at
cost less accumulaled depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events of changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The cost of an item of property and equipment is recognized as an
assct if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
raliably. The cost includes the cost of replacing par of the property and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
conshruction or production of g qualifying preperty and equipment.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component part has a cost which is significant to the total
cost of the asset and has useful (e that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.

Property and equipment are eliminated from financial statements, either on disposal or when relired from active use. Losses arising in ¢ase of retirement of
property and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of property and equipment are recognized in Staterment of Profit and Loss in the year of
OcCurrence.

The assets’ residual values, ugeful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed al sach financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Useful lives (except computer) used by the Company are
different from rates prescribed under Schedule [l of the Companies Act 2013. These rates are based on evaluation of useful life estimated by the management
supported by internal technical evaluation. The range of useful lives of the property, plant and equipmant are as follows:

Nature of agsets Useful life
Computer equiptnent I years
Oflice equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
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{xii)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits thal are altributable to the assets wlll flow to the Company and the cost of

the assel can be measured reliably,

Intangible assels acquited separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at gost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment [osses.

lntangible assel pertains to media and cuntent archive rights purchased.,

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life (5 years) and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amorlisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period,
Changes in the expected useful life or the expecled pattern of consumption of future economic beneflts embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amerlization period or method, as appropriate, and are lreated as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortizallon expense on intangible assels is recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another assel

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as ihe difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asse! is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication lthat an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is requited, the Company estimates the assel's recoverable amount. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use, The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely indepsndenl of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceads its
recoverable amount, the asset is considerad impaired and is wrilten down 10 its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted ta their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessmenls of the lime value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent markst transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valualion model is used.

The impairment calculations are based on detailed budgels and forecast calculations for each of the Company's CGUs covering a period of five years and
applying a long-lerm growth rate to project future cash flows after the fiftih year. Impairment losses of operations are recegnized in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

At each reporting date if there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, the Company estimates the
asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed in the slatement of profit and loss only to the axtent of lower of its
recoverable amount o carrying amount net of depreciation considering no impairment 10ss recognized in prior years only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.

Leases
The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 116.

The Company as lessee
The Company's leased assets consist of leases [or office premises, venue for in-person esporis exhibition/ events, and squipments. The Company assesses

whather a conlract contains lease, at Inception of a contract. A contractis, or conlains, a fease if lhe contract conveys the right to conirol the use of an identified
assel for @ period in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether:

» the contract involves the use of an identified asset

- the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the assel through the period of the lease and

» the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, tegether with periods covered by an oplion to extend the lease, where the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

The Company at the commencement of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use {(ROU) asset at cosi and corresponding lease liability, except for leases
wilh term of less than Wwelve months (short term leases} and low-value assets. For these short term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lzase
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lzase term,

The cosl of the ROU assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease paymenis made at or before the inception date of
the lease plus any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives received, Subsequently, the ROU assels are measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, If any. ROU asset are depreciated using the straight-line method from the sommencement date over the
shorter of lease term or useful life of ROU assets. The estimated useful lives of RQU assets are detarmined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment,

The Company applies IAS 38 to determine whether a RoU asset is impaired and accounls for any identified impairment loss as desctibed in the impairment of
non-financial assets above,

For lease liabilities at the commencement of the lease, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. The lease payments are discounied using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined, if that rate is not readily determined,
the lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate that the Company would have to pay to burrow funds, including the consideration of
faclars such as the nature of the asset and location, collateral, market terms and conditions, as applicable in a similar economic environment.

After the commencemenl date, the amount of [ease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made,

The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liabilily as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets. Where the carrying amount of the
right-of-use assets is reduced to zero and there is a further redugtion in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining amount
of the remeasurement in consolidated statement of income.

Lease liability payments are classified as cash used in financing activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows,
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Surnmary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information
{Amounts are stated in 3 millions unless olharwise stated)

{xiii)

{Riv)

{xv)

{xvi)

{xvii)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise rash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an inslgnificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the staternent of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considerad an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methad, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals of
accruals of past or future oparaling cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows From cperaling, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated,

Provisions, contingent Kakilities, and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate ol
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rale that reflects the current market assessments of time value of muney and the risks specific to the liabilily. The increase in the provision due te passage ol
time is recogrised as interest expense. The provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or nan-
occurrence of ohe of more uncertain future svents not wholly within the control of the Company. Or a present obligation that arises from past events but is nol
recognized because it is not probable that an outllow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the
obligation cannotl be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial stalemenls, However, it ig disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Employee henefits

Post-employment benefits

The Company contributes to statutory provident fund in sccordance with Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 that is a definec
contribution plan and contribution paid or payable is recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees render services.

The Company's obligation because of gratuily is determined based on actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumplions thal
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valualion and its long-term nature, thess ligbililies are highly sensitive lo changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

The Company recognizes the changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, (he Management considers the intersst rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefil obligation, The mortality rate is based on publicly available
mortality latles of [ndia, Those mortality tables tend o change only at inlerval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
ingreases are based on expecled fulure inflation rates for the respeclive counlries.

The Goinpany operales a delined benefil graluily plan, which requires coniributions to be made tv a separately administersd fund. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined bensfit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Liability for graluity as at the year-end is provided on the basis o
actuarial vafuation,

Re-measurement, comprising aof actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), ars recognized immediately in the balance sheel wilh a comrespoending debil or credit to retained earnings through OCY in the period in which ihey
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Metinterest is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset,

Shert - term employee benefits

All employee benefits which are due within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-term employee benefits, Benefits such as salaries
wages, short term compensated absences, ete. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. All short-term employes beneflts are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting year based on services rendered by employees.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding other comprehensive income) for the year attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year i
adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a right issue, shares split and reserve share splits (consolidation of shares) that have changed the
nunber of equity shares outstanding, without a comesponding change in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diuted garnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders afler taking inte account the
afler income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated wilh dilutive potential equity sharas and the weighted average number of additiona
equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilulive potential equity shares.
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{xviii) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instrument such as investments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair velue is the price that would be received to sell an zsset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwsan market participanis at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or fransfer the liability takes place either.

+ Inn the principal market for the asset or liability - or
- In the absence of a pringipal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the mosl advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measursd using the assumptions that markel participants would use when pricing the asset or liahility, assuming tha
market particinants act In their economic bestinterest,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient dala are avaitable to measure fair value, maximizing
the use of relavant obsarvable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inpuls.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy
described as follows, based on the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as awhole:

+ L.evel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for idenlical assets or liabilities

« Level 2 — Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

+ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unabservable

The Company's board approves lhe policies for both recurring and non-recuming fair value measurement. Where seen appropriate external valuers are
involved. The board reviews the valuation resulls, This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

For financial assels and liabilites thal are recognized in the financial statements on & recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level inpul that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as £
whole) al the end of each reporlting period. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant financial assets and liabilities. The management selects
external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer, The
managemenl decides, after discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs 1o use for each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Corpany has determined classes of financial assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics anc
risks of lhe asset or liability and the level of the fair value higrarchy as explained above.

WLIABAl
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Note 2 : Property and equlpment

Particulars Computer Furniture and Office equipment Total
equipment Fixtures

Gross block

Balance as on 1 April 2018 427 0.09 270 7.05

Additions 1.46 0.52 0.54 2,92

Balance as on 31 March 2019 §.73 .61 3.64 9.97

Additions 1.16 0.26 0.35 1.77

Balance as on 31 March 2020 6.83 0.87 3.98 11.74

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as on 1 April 20718 2.09 0.06 1.02 317

Depreciation for the year 2.01 0.20 1.76 3.99

Balance as on 31 March 2019 4.10 0.26 2.80 7.16

Depreciation for the year {*) 0.55 0,12 0.39 1.36

Balance as on 31 March 2020 4.95 0.38 3.19 8.52

Net hlock

Balance as on 31 March 2019 1.64 0.35 0.64 2.82

Balance as on 31 March 2020 1.94 .49 0.79 3.22

(") The Company has changed the method of depreciation from Written Down Value (WDV) to Straight Line Method (SLM) and the impact of the change is
accounted on prospective basis in the financial statements. Management believes the change in the method of deprediation is in line with the Group accounting
policy. Such accounting estimate is more reliable and more relevant because it results in & more transparent treatment of depreciation and is consistent with
local industry practice, making the financial statements more comparable.

<<This space has been intentional ty left blank>>
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Nete 3: Leases

Operating leases as lessee until 31 March 2019
The Company has entered info cancellabie operating leases for office premises, venue for in-person asports exhibitions/events and equipments, These least
arrahgements range for a period between 11 months and 36 menths with lock in period between 0 months and 36 months, which include both renewal and nor

ranewal leases, These leases also include escalation clauses.
The minerium lease payments recogmsed in the Statement of Pratit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2019 amaount 1o 2 43.20 and % 3.74 for rent and

siiipimenl rental respeclively (included under ‘Renl’ and "Equipnient rental in nols 26).
wr iugare minimum lease payments are as follows:

_Partfculars Amount
Minimurm lease payments due within 1 year 3.53
Within 2-5 years -
More than & years =
3.93

Tatal

Transition w.e.f 1 April 2019

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" using the modified retrospective method, The Company has applied the standard to its
Ieases with the cumulative impact recognised on the date of initial application (1 April 2019). Accordingly, previeus period information has not been restated,
On 1 April 2019, the Company has recognised a lease liabllity measured al the present value of the remaining lease payments, and right-of-use {ROU} asse:
at an amount equal to lease lisbility (adjusted for any related prepayments). Accordingly, on transition to Ind AS 116, the Gompany recognised lease liahilities

and corresponding equivalent ROU assets.
in the Statement of Profit and Laoss for the current period, operating lease expenses which were recognised within other expenses in previous perieds is now

recognised as depreciation expense for the right-of-use asset and finance cost for imputed interest on lease liability.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolic of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a sirnilar end date.

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application

L. the rentals paid for venue and equipments for in-person esparts exhibitions! avenis.
3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.
4 Ind A5 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17,

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 is 10.00%.
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2020:

Particulars

Category of ROU
assets - Building

Balance as of 1 April 2019

ROU asscts recognised as at 01 Aprit 2019 on adopting of IND AS 116 539
Deprisciation (refer note 25) {0.57)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 4.32
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as of 31 March 2020.

Particulars Amount
Mon-current lease liabilities 1.43
Current lzase liabilities 3.46
Total 4.8%
The following is the movement in [ease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2020:

Particularsg Amount
Lease liability recognised as al 01 April 2019 on adopting of IND AS 116 5.39
Interest on lzase liability (refer note 24} 0.10
tayment of lease liabilities (0.61})
Balance as at 31 March 2020 4.38

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of 31 March 2020 on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars

- Lease payment Finance charge Net present value
Less than 1 year 3.80 0.34 346
one o five years 1.48 0.05 143
More lhan flive years -
Total 5.28 0.39 4.89

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard lo its (sase liabililies as the current assels are sufficient lo meet the obligations related (o

lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Lease expense recorded for short-term leases was € 11.22 and T 4.98 for the year ended 31 March 2020 for rent and equipment rental respectively (included
under ‘Rent’ and 'Equipment rental' in note 26) as the Company has elscted not'to a recognised a lease liability for short term leases or for lease of low valus

assels, payments under such leases are expensed on siraight line basis.

The aggregate depreciation on ROU assels has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

T Tt "o
Lot
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Note 4 : Intangibie asset (*)

Particulars Intangible asset Total

Gross block

Balance as on 1 April 2013 265.30 265.30
Balance as on 31 March 2019 265.30 265.30
Balance as on 31 March 2020 265.30 265.30
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as on 1 Aprll 2018 2.65 2.65
Amortization for the year 21.22 21.22
Balance as on 31 March 2019 23.87 23.87
Amortization for the year (**) 54.75 64.75
Balance as on 31 March 2020 88.62 53.62
Net block

Balance as on 31 March 2019 241.43 241,43
Balance as on 31 March 2020 176.68 176.68

("} Intangible asset pertains to media nyghts, naming rights of @ brand and content archive purchased for 5 years.

{*} During the year, the Company has changed its accounting estimate for the treatment of amortization of intangible asset. In previous years, the Company
had amortized the intangible asset as per the pattern of usage or consumption of intangible asset over the useful lifa of 5 years. The Company has now
decided to amortize the intangible asset an straight line basis over the remaining useful life of intangible asset. Management believes that the change in
accounting eslimate pravides reliable and more relevant information, because it results in @ more transparent treatment of amortization of intangible asset
and is consgistent with local industry practice, making the financial staterments more comparable.

<=<<This space has been intentionally left blank>>>
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MNote 5 : Non-current Investments

Particulars

As at
31 Narch 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Unguoled equily instruments - at cost, fully paid-up
Investment in subsidiary
MNoctwin Gaming International Limited, Honk Kong (*)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregale amount of impairment in the value of investments

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH {fully paid)

AFK Gaming Private Limited

[(2.783 (31 March 2019 2 783) equity shares of ¥ 2,066 each]
Aggregate amount of unguoted investmenis at fair value (#)

Aggregate amounl of unquoted investments at cost

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

{*} Amount is below rounding off threshold adopted by the Company

] -
0 %
5.75 575
575 575
575 575

{(#) The management of the Company evaluates that the fair value of investments in AFK Gaming Private Limited is same as the carmying value of the

investment as on 31 March 2020 and conciude that there is no impact of fair valuation in the current year,

Note 6 : Deferred tax assets (net)

Particul As at As at
articulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Deferred tax assets [Refer note 27) 1.67 1.56

1.67 1.56
Note 7 : Income tax asset (net)

_P .rt‘ | As at As at
g 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
income tax receivables [net of provision for income tax < 3.70 million, (31 March 2019: ¥ 3.70 million)] 5.32 5.28

§.32 5.29
Note 8 : Trade receivables
Ag at As at

Particuiars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(Carried at amortised cost, except otherwise slated)

Unsecured considered good {*) 475.94 213.20
Unsecured considered doubtful 0.43 -
Less: Alowance for expected credit Joss 0.43 o
475.94 213.20
("} Includes amount due to related parties {refer note 34} 13014 3.99
- For ageing analysis of trade receivables, refer note 31.
Note 9 ; Cash and cash equivalents
] As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balances with banks
- in current accounls 22,30 30.10
- deposits with original maturity less than 3 months - 2610
Cash on hand
- int Indian Currengy 0.02 0.06
-1 foreign currencies 0.14 -
22.46 56.26

Note 10 : Loans

Particulars

{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits
Loans to employees(*)

{"} Includes amount due to related parties (refer nole 34}

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 201%
327 200
10.00 =
13.27 2.00
10.00 =

(") Non-interest bearing and repayable on demand, Notional interest included as perquisile in the hands of the employee.
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Note 11 : Other financial assets - current

Parliculars

{Unsecured- considered good unless otherwise stated)
Income receivable

Note 12 ; Other ¢urrent assets

As at Az at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
19.01 12.85
18,01 12,85

Particulars

{Unsecured- considered good unless otherwise stated)
Balance with government authorities
Advance paid ta suppliers

<<<This space has been intentionally left blank>>>
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Note 13 : Share capital

As at 31 March 2019

Particulars As at 31 March 2020
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised shares
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 50,000 0.50 50.000 0.50
Issued, subscribed and fully Paid-up
13.414 0.13 13,414 013

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid-up
(a) Details of shareholders holding more than §% share in the Company

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each

Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

No of Shares % Holding No of Shares % Holding
Good Game Investiment Trust 3,019 22.51% 3,019 22.51%
Jet Synthesis Private Limited 3,019 22.51% 3,018 22.51%
MNazara Technologies Limited 7,376 54.99% 7,376 54,99%

(b) Reconcilfation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Eqjuity shares of ¥ 10 each

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount
At the baginning of the year 13,414 0.13 13,414 0.13
lisued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 13,414 0.13 13,414 0.13

{c) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of 2 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject lo the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeling, except in case of interim
dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Cornpany, after distribution

of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{d) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five

years immediately preceding the reporting date.

The Company has not issued any bonus shares, shares for consideration other than cash or bought back any shares since the date of incorporation,

Nate 14 : Other equity

Particulars

31 March 2020

As at As at
31 March 2019

Retained earnings
Secrities premium

Nature and purpose of reserves
Retained earnings : Retained earnings represent the Company's undistributed profits,

41.26 28.07
385.28 355.26
+96.55 383.36

Securities premium ; Securities premium is used to record the premium oh issue of shares. These reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the

Act,
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Note 15 : Nen-current provisions

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2018

Provision for employes benefits
Graluity {refer note 29)

Ngote 16 : Trade payables

3.81

2.59

3.81

2.59

Particulars

Total outstanding dues to micro and smalil enterprises
Total eutstanding due to creditors other than micro and small enterprises {")

(") Includes amount payable to related parties {refer note 34}

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
370.57 176.62
370,57 176.562
4.69 36.05

There are no micro, small and medium enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31 March, 2020,
and no interest payment made during the year to any micro, small and medium enterprises. This information as required to be disclosed under the micro,
small and medium enterprises development Act, 2006, has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

available with the Company,

Note 17 : Other financial labilities

. As at As at
Part
RiFulE 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Creditors for expenses 312 0.45
Enwployee dues () 3.91 1.16
7.03 1.61
{*) mcludes amount payable to related parties {refer note 34} 2.95 116
Naote 18 : Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Advance received from custormers .15 =
Staulory dues 10.12 9.70
10.27 9.70
Note 19 : Current provisicns
. As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Provision for emplovee benefits

Gratuity (refer nole 29) 0.52 0.35
0.52 0.35
Note 20 : Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
21 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provision for income tax [net of advance tax of ¥ 2.88 million, {31 March 2019 : T Nilj) 1.89 -
1.89 -

<<<This space has been infentionally (eft biank>>>
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Note 21 : Revenue from Operations

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Sale of Services® (refer aote 30) 746.61 48547
746.61 49517
“lncludes sale of services o relaled parties refer note 34) 163.83 7.99
Note 22 : Other Income
Interest on bank deposits 140 1.67
Currency fluctuation gain 4.45 4.40
Miscellaneous income 1.86 0.01
7.4 6.08
Note 23 : Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 47.78 32.50
Staff welfare expenses 0.51 0.01
Gratuity expenses (refer note 29) 1.13 0.38
49,42 32.9¢

Note 24 ; Finance cost

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

interest on iease liakiiity (refer note 3)

Note 25 : Depreciation and amortization expense

0.10

0,10

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Depreciation on property and equipment {refer note 2) 1.38 399

Depreciation of right-of-use assets {refer rote 3) 0.57 -

Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 4) 64,75 21.22

66.68 25.21

Note 26 : Other expenses

Particuiars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Advertising 762.08 7.37
Event 174.189 24096
Communication 76.77 58.18
Travelling and conveyance 4985 52.15
Tuols and equipiment 12.48 2.37
Equipment rental 11.22 3.74
Legal and professional 533 1.01
Content 5.09 4.66
Rent (refer note 3) {*) 4,96 43.30
Bad detts 492 -
Auditor's remuneralion {refer note helow) 047 0.08
Allowance for expected credit loss 0.43 -
Misceilaneous 11.92 18.41
6519.71 43217
(") Includes venue rent for in-person gsports exhibitionsf events 1.21 39.00
Payment to auditors
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Audit fees 0.47 0.03
0.47 0.08
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Note 27: Tax expenses/ Deferred tax

{a} The major components of income lax expense for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 21 March 2019 are:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Statement of profit or loss
Praofit and loss section
Current tncome tax charge

Deferred tax on account of temporary differences

OCl section - tax related te items recognised in OCI during the year:

mcome lax relating to re-measurements gain on defined benefit plans

4.77 3.70
(0.04) (0.63)
4.73 3,07
0.07 0.53
0.07 0.53

(b} Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019;

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Accounting profit before income tax 18.11 16.97
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.168 % {31 March 2019: 27.82%) (refer note below) 4.56 3.05
Change in tax rate 0.17 0.02
Inceme tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 4.73 3.07
Effective income tax rate 26.11% 28.00%

Note:

The Government of India, on 20 September 2019 vide the Taxation Laws {Amendment)
Tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Cormnpany fa
section. Based on its evaluation, the Company expect o av

{r} Deferred tax
Deferred tax relates to the following:

Ordinance, 2019. inserted a new Section 115 BAA in the Incame
r paying tax at reduced rates (lower tax rate} as per the provisions! conditions defined in the said
ail lower tax rate an account of reduced income tax rate.

Particulars

Deferred tax assets (gross)

Provision for employee benefits
Property and equipment and intangible
assets

Right of use asset {net of lzase liability)
Allowance for expected credit Joss
Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets {net)

Deferred tax assets {gross)

Frovision for employee benefits
Froperty and equipmenl and intangible
assets

Total cteferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets {net}

As at Recognised in profit Recognised in other As at
1 April 2019 or loss comprehensive 31 March 2020
income
0,82 0.20 0.07 1.09
0.74 (0.28) - 0.46
- 0.0 - 0.01
- 0.1 - 0.11
1.56 0.04 0.07 1.67
1.56 0.04 0.07 1.67
As at Recognised in Recognised in other As at
1 April 2012 Statement of profit or comprehensive 31 Mareh 2019
loss income
G.18 0.1 0.53 0.82
0.22 0.52 - 0.74
0.40 0.63 0.53 1.56
0.40 0.63 0.53 1.56
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Note 28 : Eamings per share

Particulars

For the yaar ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Disclusure as required by Indlan Accounting Standard {Ind AS} 33 - Earnings Per Share

Profit after tax as per Stalement of Profit and Loss
Weighted average number of shares for Basis/ Diluted garning per share
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share

Note 29 : Employee benefits
Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

13.38 790
13,414 13,414
997.47 588.94

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Acl, 1972, the Company is required to provide post employment benefit to its employees in the form of gratuity. The
company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is eligible for gratuity on cessation of amployment and

iLis computed at 15 days’ salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

I'he present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined at each balance sheet date based on an actuarial valuation using the projectad unit

credil method.
The following tables sets out the status defined benefit plan as required under d AS 19 - Employee benefits,

Particulars

31 March 202¢

31 March 2019

{a) Reconciliation of net defined banefit (asset) liability
Reconciliation For present value of defined benefit obligations
[Zefined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year

Current service cosl

Interesl cost

Acluarial (gains)/ losses recognised in Other Comprahensive income
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

{b) Amount recognised in Balance sheet
Current provision
Non-current provision

(¢) Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other comprehensive Income
{i} Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cosl

Inlgrest cost

{ii) Expenge recognised in the Other comprehensive income
Acluarial (gains} losses on defined bensfit obligations

-arising from changes in financial assumptions

-anging on account of experienca changes

(d} Actuarial assumptions

The lollowing were the principal actuarial assumptions al the reporting date (sxpressed as weighted averages).
Financial assumptions

Discount rale

Salary escalation

Demographic assumptions

2.54 .71
0.92 0.34
0.21 0.05
0.26 1.84
4.33 2.94
.52 0.35
3.81 2.59
4.33 2.94
0.21 0.34
0.92 0,05
1.13 0.39
0.25 0.06
0.01 1.78
0.26 1.84
5.76% 6.96%
16.00% 15.00%

Mortalily rate 100% of IALM 2006-08  {00% of IALM 2006-08
Wilhdrawal Rate 20.00% 20.00%
(e} Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affectod the
defined benefll obligation by the amounts shown below.
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Defined benefit ubligation (base) 4.33 2,94

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount rate (1% movement) 0.24 0.21 0.14 0158
Salary escalation (1 % movement) 0,14 0.15 0.10 0.10
Allrition rate (1% movement) 0.09 0.08 005 0.05

I'he sensitivity analyses above have been delermined based on a method that extrapolates Iha impact on defined benefit obligation as a resull of reasonable

changes in key assumplions oceurring at the end of the reporting period.

{f} Maturity analysis of prajected benefit obligation

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

1 year 0.52 0.35
2 yaar 0.51 0.37
3 year 053 0.37
4 yoar 0.55 0.38
b year 0.50 0.38
6 to 10 years 1.76 1.33
More than 10 years 1.62 1.32
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Note 30 : Disaggregated revenue information

{a) Disaggregation of revenue

Sel out below is the disaggregation of the Gompany's revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation to the Statement of Profit and Loss,

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

m‘ype of services

iF Services 431.10 231.93
Consultancy Services 315.581 263.24
Total revenue from contract with customers 746.61 40517
{ii) Geographical market
India 391.67 210.87
Cutside India
Hongkong 157.96 -
Rest of the world 196.98 284 .30
746.61 49517

Total revenue from contract with customers

{iv) Timing of revenue recognitions
Services transferred at a point in time

Services transferrad over thine

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
IP Services - 431.10 231.93

Consultancy Services 315.51 263.24

{v) Location of servics : For the years ended 21 March 2020 ard 2019, 99 percent and 98 percent were recognized for services given online and 1 percent and 2

percent of revenuss were recognised for services given in parson, respectively,

{bj Gontract balances
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2049
Contract assels 19.01 1285
.15 -

Contract Nabilines

Moles:

The contract assets are in form of receivables, which are included in income receivable, primarily relate to the Company rights to cansideration for servies given to

the: customers but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assete are transferred to raceivables when it will be billed subssquently.

The conlract liabilities are in form advance received from cuslomer for which the obligation of supply of goods/service is not completed al the year end,

(c} Movement in contract assets and contract liabilities

For the year ended
31 March 2429

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Opening balance of contract liabilities =
0.15

Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current year -
Amount of revenue recognised against vpening contract liabilities - =
Closing balance of contract liabilities 0.15 -
Opening balance of coniract assets 12.85 =
Addition in balance of contract assets for current year 19.01 12.85
Amount of billing recegnised against opening contract assets (12.85) =
18.4 12,85

Closing balance of contract agssls

.{: %,
=% Ak
\§

K ThAEA

e
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Note 31 : Financial instruments risk

The Company is exposed primarily 1o fluctuations in forsign currency exchange rales, credil, liquidily and interest rate risk which may adversely impacl the fa
value of its financial instrument. The Company has risk managemenl policy which covers risk associaled with financial liabilities and assets. The ris
management policy is approved by Board of Directors. The focus is o assess the unprediclability of financial environment and to mitigate potential advers
effect un Ihe financial performance of the Company.

The Companies principal financial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables and other financial liabilities fincluding lease liability). The main purpose «

these financial liabilities to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade receivables, invesiments, cash and cas
equivalents, loans and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

I'he Company's senior management oversees the management of the risks inherent to the business.

31.1 2 Market risk analysis
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument wiil fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises lwo types of risks: currency risk and interest rate rigk.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Th.
Company has foreign currency trade receivables, trade payables and foreign currencies and is therefore expesed to foreign exchange risk.

The summary quantitative data about the company's exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of the group is as follows:

Particulars Foreign currency Ag at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
denomination Foreign Currency Foreign Currency

Indian currency ( Indian currency

(in absolute value) in absolute value)
frade receivables | usD 0.05 3.40 0.59 40.18
EURC 0.29 24.35 1.71 144,13
Cash on hand uUsD 000 0.07 - -
Thai Bhatt 0.03 0.07 - -
frade payables uso 0.00 0.11 0.01 0,73
el exposure 28.00 185.03

Trade receivables include balance outstanding in local currency amounting to 2 448.1% (3% December 2019: 2 28.89) for which the Company does not carn
any currency risk.

Trade payables include balance outstanding in local currency amounting to % 370.46 {21 March 2019: 2 175.89) for which the Company does not carry any
ewrency risk.

Cash on hand include balance outstanding in local currency amaounting to % 0.02 (31 March 2019: ¥ 0.06) for which the Company does not carmy any currency
risk.

The Company's sensitivily 1 a 5% appreciation/dapreciation of USD and EURD which are major currencies with respect to Rupee on balance sheet date or
rmonetary items would result in increase/decrease in unrealised loss on monhetary assets and liabilities by approximately ¥ 0,17 {31 March 2019:3 197)and ®
1.22 (31 March 2019: 7,20} respectively for the year cnded 31 March 2020,

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting
pertod does nol reflect the exposure during the year.

iterest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk,

3.2 : Credit risk analysis
Credit risk refers to risk that a counter party will defauit on its contractual ubligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company is exposed to this
risk for receivables from customers.

l'o manage credil risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers and other counterparlies, taking into account the financial
condition, current economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly. The Company
HUses a provision margin to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivable. Trade receivables, bad debts, ECL provisions, ele. are monitored
on periodic basis for any non-recoverability of the dues. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with
banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credil raling agencies.

The aging analysis of the receivable (gross of provision} has been considered from the date the invoice falls due,

Particulars Neither past due nor Past due hut not impaired

impaired 0-180 days 181-365 days lotl
As at 31 March 2020 43425 23.91 17.78 375,94
As al 31 March 2019 935 213.20
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Movement in allowance for expected credit loss

Particulars Amount
As at 1 April 2018 C
Provided during the year -
As at 31 March 2019 -
Provided during the year 0.42
0.43

As at 31 March 2020

31.3 : Liquidity risk analysis
Liguidily risk is the risk thal the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by deliverin
cash or ancther financial asset. For the Cornpany, liquidity risk arises from cbligations on account of financial liabilities - trade payables and other financi
liabilities.

Liquidity risk management

The Cornpany continues to mainfain adequate amount of liquidityftreasury to maet strategic and growth objectives. The Company has ensured 2 balanc
between eaming adequate returns on liquidity/treasury assets and the need to cover financial and business risks, The Company's treasury department |
responsible for liguidity and funding as well as settlement management. In addilion, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senic

management,
Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

Financial liabilities maturing within ong year:

Particulars nae As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade payables 370.57 176.62
Other financial liabilties {including lease liability) 11.92 1.67
Total 382.49 178.23

<<<This space has been intentionally left blank>>>
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Note 32: Financial Instruments

32.1 Financial Instrument by category and hierarchy

The fair valuz of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at wiich the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parlies, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

The Company uses the following hisrarchy for determining and disclesing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation tachnique:
- Level 1: quoted {unadjusted} prices in active markets for identical assets or fiabilities.
*  Level 2t olher techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, sither directly or indirectly.
+ Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 202¢, are as follows:

Y
Particulars Carrying Value Falr value measurement using
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost (%) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(i Trade receivables - - 475.94 - - -
(i} lnvestments = 575 = - - 5,75
{iv} Cash and cash equivalents - - 2246 - - =
{v} Loans - - 13.27 - = =
(vi) Other financial assels - - 19.01 - - =
Total - 5.75 530.68 - - 575
Particulars Carrying value Fair value rneasurement using
FYTPL Fvocl Ameortised cost (*) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
i’ Trade payables - - 370.57 - - -
(i) Other linancial liabilities - - 11.92 - - =
Tetal - - 382.49 - - -
The carrying value and fair vaiue of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2019, are as follows:
Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using
FVTPL FVoCI Amartised cost (%) Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3
{i)  Trade receivables - - 213.20 - - -
{fi}  Investments n 5.75 - " - 5.75
{iv) Cash and cash equivalents - - 56.26 - - -
{vil) Loans - - 2.00 - - -
{viii) Other financial assats - - 12.85 - - -
Total - 575 284.31 - - -
Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using
FVTPL FVYQCI Amortised cost (%) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(f}  Trade payables - - 176.62 - - -
(i) Other financial liakilities - - 1.61 = - z
Total - - 178.23 - = £

{*) Fair value of trade receivable, cash and cash equivalent, ofher current financial asset, trade payable and other current financial liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts fargely due to short term maturitias of these instruments.

There were no lransfers between Lavel 1 and Level 2 in during the years,
Note 33: Capital management policies and procedures

The Company is predominantly equity financed and conlinues to maintain adequate amount of liquidity to meet strategic and growth objectives. The Company
rmanages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising returns for its stakeholders. The Company manages ils capital
sliuclure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjusl the capital
struclure, the Company may adjust the dividend payments to shareholders, return capital lo shareholders or issue new shares. The Company has ensured a
balance between earning adequate returns on Ireasury assel and need to cover financial and business risk. The Company actively monitors its portfolio and has
a poliey in place to investing surplus funds. Appropriate limits and conlrols are in place to ensure that investments are made as per palicy,
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Nate 34 : Related party transactions

{a) Nameg of the Related parties
i Holding company

ii. Entity exercising significant influence
fii. Subsidiary
iv. Fellow subsidiaries

v.  Other related parties {(enterprises over which KMP
aleng with relatives are able to exercise significant influence)

vi. HKey management personnel (KMP)

vii. Relative of Director

MNazara Technologies Limited
Jetsynthesis Private Limited
MNodwin Gaming International Limited, Honk Kong

Nextwave Multimedia Private Limited
MNazara Pte Ltd
MNazara Technologies (Mauritius)

Supernova Esports League Private Limited
Bearn me up Travel Private Limited

AFK Gaming Private Limited

Nodwin Consulant Private Limited

Akshat Rathee (Director)

Rajesh Ramesh Navani {Director)
Manish Agarwal {Director)

Vamsi Krishna Talasila (Diractor)
Siddharth Kedia (CEQ}

Param Vir Rathee
Megha Rathee

(b} The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business.

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Sale of services
MNazara Technologies Limited
MNazara Pte Lid
Nazara Technologies (Mauritiug)
Jelsynihesis Private Lirnited
AFK Gaming Private Limited
Nodwin Gaming International Limited

Travelling and conveyance
Beam me up Trave! Private Limited

Rent expense
Param Vir Rathee

Empoyee benefit expense(’)
Paid to KMP

Loans granted during the year
Paid to KMP(#)

Game Development Charges
Mextwave Multimedia Private Limitad

Advertising
Supernova Esports League Private Limited

Casting Expenses
AFK Gaiming Private Limited

Miscellaneous Expenses
Nodwin Consullant Private Limited
Absolute Sports Private Limited

{c) Closing balances of related parties
Trade receivables:
Mazara Technologies {Mauritius)
Mazara Pte Lid
Nazara Technologies Limited
Nodwin Gaming International Limited
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372 0.59
- 1.73
3 1.73
- 295
215 1,00
157.96 -
163.83 7.99
65.39 52.66
65,39 52.66
2.97 2.97
297 2.97
18.80 8.40
18.80 8,40
10.00 -
10.00 &
1.55 1.80
1.55 1.80
2.05 1.92
2.05 1.92
214 3.97
2,14 3.97
212 2.12
0.20 -
2.32 2.2
- 1.73
- 1.73
0.65 .54
12949 -
130.14 3.99
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Note 34 ; Related party transactions
Trade payables:
Supernova Esports League Private Limited
Nodwin Consultant Private Limited
Beani me up Travel Private Lirnited
Absolute Sports Private Limited

Employee dues
To KMP

Loan to employees
To KMP

{d) Terms and Conditions

1.86 0.21
1.41 241
1.33 33.44
0.09 =
4.69 36.05
2.98 1.16
2.95 1.16
10.00 -
16.00 -

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and with in the ordinary course of

business.
Outstaniding balances at the year end are unsecured,

{"} As gratuity are computad for all employee in aggregate, the amount relating to KMP's and relative of KPM's cannat be individually identified.

(#) The managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with

Schedule V to the Act,
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Note 35 : The Company has used the exemption avallable to companies under Companies Act,2013 and ind AS from preparing cansolidated financials
certain criteria are met.

a) Details of holding company

Below is e details of holding company whose consclidated financial statements comply with IndAS:

Helding Company Nazara Technelogies Limiled

Frincipal ptace of business of Helding Company 51-67, Maker Chambers 3, Nariman Point, Mumbal - 400021

b) Details of subsidiary companies

o % of ownership interest and voting
Narne Principal Place of Business 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Nodwin Gaming International Limited Hongkong 100% -

Note 36 : Segment reporting
Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the management. The management regularly monitors anc
reviews the operating result of the whole Company as one segment, Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the Company's entire busines:

Talls under this one operalioriai segment.

Note 27 : Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date.

Note 38 : Post reporting date events

Subsequant to the year end, the Company has alloted 856 partly paid up equity shares of face value of 2 10 each at a premiurn of 2 1,80.420 per share fo
an amount aggregating to  154.45 million to M/s. Good Game Investment Trust. On application, the allottes paid T 1,804.30 per share being 1% of the
issue price and the balance ¥ 178,625.70 per share, being 99% of the issue price, shall be called up and received (i} 15 days prior to the expiry of the fourtt
anniversary of the issuance of the partly paid-up up equity shares or (i} 15 days prior to happening of any liquidation event, whichever is earlier.

Mo adjusting or significant non-adjusting events, other than the aforesaid, have occurred between 31 Mareh 2020 and the date of authorisation of these
financial statements.

Note 39 : During tha yzar ended 31 March 2020, the Company reclassified/regrouped certain previous year's amount i.e. 31 March 2019, Refer below the
reviassified/regrouped amount in the previous year.
' Reclassification of financial information of previous year ended 37 March 2019

Reclassification from current year information in Reclassification to in previous year information in Amount
previous year current year

Other non-current assets Intangible assets 198.98
Other currenl assels Intangible assets 4245
Trade receivables Other current financial assets 12.85
Trade receivables Other current asset 0.89
Non-~current provision Current provision .35
Other current liabilities Qther current asset 10.85
Other current asscts Income tax assets (net) 528
Other non-current assetfs Income tax asscots (net) o001
Other currents assels Loans 2.00
Othor oxpenses Employee benefits 8.40
Ciher expenses Depreciation and amortization 21.22
Finlance cost OCther expense 0.06

As per our repart of even date attached.
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